What is a negative double?

by David Stevenson

There is a basic problem [which is common throughout the world]: many players are of the opinion that their way is the only way.  In England and North America there are long-standing arguments between those who think Stayman guarantees a four-card major, and those that do not.  The simple answer is that you can not and must not assume that everyone plays even the simplest of conventions one way.

What does the sequence 1D 1H X show?  Of course, there are some people who still play it as penalties, or co-operative, ie penalty-ish, but the majority of players in most countries play it for takeout.  When the negative double was invented, it was played to show the unbid suits, so the original exponents of the convention would play the given sequence as spades plus clubs.  However, times change.

For a long time, there has been a view that the best usage is to show an unbid 4-card major, so that a bid of a major would show five cards.  However that is by no means the only method.  Some players like to play a change of suit as non-forcing, so double covers all the better hands, and there are various other possibilities.

The important thing is that if a player knows that this sequence is a Negative Double, then all he knows is that it is for takeout.  He cannot assume it shows four spades, for example, because many players do not play that way.  Unfortunately many players do make that assumption.  Of course, if he asks the meaning of the double, opponents should not just answer "Negative" [or "Sputnik" or "Takeout"] but regrettably many do.  Rarely does a player need to know, but if he wants to know the style he must ask: he must not assume.

The ABF convention card merely has a checkbox for Negative, so a player cannot assume the style from that box being checked.  In the same way, the fact that there is no delayed alert means that it is a takeout double, but nothing more.  [Doubles are self-alerting, so no alert would be expected at the time.]  Thus an unalerted double in this position is a Negative double, which may or may not show an unbid four-card major.

What about Pre-alerting?  There is no need to pre-alert ANY meaning for doubles according to ABF Regulations: even if there were, it is not particularly unusual to play a Negative Double not to show a four-card major, and a Pre-alert would be unsuitable.

To make sure that the approach in Australia was the same as the rest of the world, I asked several players at the Gold Coast Congress: the general feeling was that showing an unbid four-card major was the most usual, but not so much so that it could be inferred from a failure to make a delayed alert or Negative being checked on the Convention Card.  I also asked some Directors: their answers were inconsistent.

ABF Alerting regulations contain the following:

"The general principle is to alert calls which the opponents may not fully understand or reasonably misinterpret."  There is no reason to misinterpret things like Negative Doubles by assuming everyone plays one way.
Of course, the ABF could lay down that the sequence 1D 1H X was alertable [at the end]  if it did not guarantee four spades.  After all, they write the rules on alerting.  However, it would be a special case, and the ABF has resisted having special cases, as more complicated regulations like the EBU's or the ACBL's do: I would not advise them to make an exception to their normal approach. It is also not a matter for Pre-alerting, as has been suggested: a quick look at the Pre-alerting regulations shows this.

It is important for players to realise that not everyone plays their way.  When people need to know the style or detail of an opponent's conventions they should ask not assume.
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